
Dear Colleague 
 

LEICESTERSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM 
 
I would like to invite you to a meeting of the Leicestershire Schools’ Forum to be held on 
Wednesday 23 February 2022, 2.00 pm via Teams 
 
Please see below the agenda for the meeting.   
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
Karen Brown 
Clerk to the Schools Forum 

AGENDA 
Paper 

 
 
 
 
1. Apologies and Substitutions 
 

2. Minutes and Matters Arising   1 
 
3. 2022/23 Schools Budget         2 
 

4. Maintained School Deficits and Academy Conversion 
 

5. Any Other Business 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the Leicestershire Schools Forum 
via Teams on Monday 15 November 2021 at 1.00 pm 

 
Present 

 

Chris Parkinson   Secondary Academy Headteacher 

Liam Powell    Secondary Academy Headteacher 

Kath Kelly    Secondary Academy Headteacher 

Jane Lennie    Secondary Maintained Governor 

Jane McKay    Primary Academy Headteacher 

Ed Petrie    Primary Academy Headteacher 

Karen Allen    Primary Maintained Headteacher 

Alison Ruff    Primary Maintained Headteacher 

Zoe Wortley    Primary Maintained Governor 

Kelly Dryden     Special Academy Representative 

Jason Brooks   Special Maintained Representative 

Clive Wright    RC Representative 

Graham Bett    DNCC Representative 
 
In attendance 
Jane Moore, Director of Children and Family Services 
Deborah Taylor, Lead Member, Children and Family Services 
Alison Bradley, Head of Service, Education Quality and Inclusion 
David Atterbury, Head of Service, Education Sufficiency 
Jenny Lawrence, Finance Business Partner, Corporate Resources 
Mike Lilley, School Financial Planner 
 

  Action 

1. Apologies and Substitutions 
 
Apologies were received from Suzanne Uprichard, Jane Dawda, Julie 
McBrearty and Martin Towers.   
 

 

2. Minutes and Matters Arising 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 27 September 2021 were 
agreed subject to the following amendment to the paragraph 3 of agenda 
item ‘Fair School Funding’. 
 
Karen Allen commented that when a high needs transfer was previously 
discussed it was the MFG that hindered making it fair and whilst it does 
protect schools there are situations where it affects that mechanism in 
different ways.  Jenny agreed and said that the minimum per pupil 
funding level that affects the transfer will be discussed later on the 
agenda. 
 

 

3 Agenda Item 2



 

 

3. 2022/23 Schools Block Transfer and De-Delegation of Funding for 
Union Facilities Time 
 
Jane Moore presented the outcome of the school funding consultation 

which sets out the background to the need for a Schools to High Needs 

Block funding transfer for 2023/24 and seeks Schools Forum approval for 

a transfer. 

 

The report also presents the consultation response on the principle of de-

delegation of funding for maintained schools the purposes of establishing 

a scheme to fund Union Facilities Time.   

 

Jane stated that a number of reports had been presented to Schools 

Forum setting out the financial position of the High Needs Block and the 

reasons for seeking approval for a transfer were outlined in the 

presentation made to the meeting on 27 September 2021.  Jane added 

that the consultation period ran from 20 September to 18 October 2021 

for the transfer and de-delegation of funding for union facilities time.  A 

range of comprehensive documents were issued with the consultation 

which set out the background to the high needs position and a workbook 

illustrating the impact of the transfer on individual schools and 

background information to the de-delegation for union facilities time. 

 

Jane stated that 13 consultation responses were received, one of which 

did not answer any questions and 5 were submitted from the same 

school.  It was noted the consultation responses are attached as 

Appendix 1 to the report.  Jane stated that the low response rate did not 

give a statistically representative view of Leicestershire schools on either 

issue - the Schools Block Transfer and de-delegation for union facilities 

time. 

 

Jane gave more detail on the responses received in terms of numbers as 

outlined in the report and stated that in terms of next steps the response 

rate does not allow a representative view for all Leicestershire schools on 

the proposed transfer identity nor did it give any tangible options to 

manage the ever increasing and challenging high needs position from 

schools which was also asked within the consultation.  Jane said 

therefore the consultation outcomes does not outweigh the strength of 

the need to the transfer. 

 

Jane referred to the models proposed in paragraph 21 and said Model 2 

was the preferred option for the local authority to achieve the transfer and 

gives a lesser impact on an individual school level as well.  This model 

would require Secretary of State approval within the DfE deadline of 21 

November 2021.  Jane added that a further request would be made to 

the Secretary of State in respect of Model 1 should Schools Forum not 

approve the transfer.  In terms of implementation this would be 

dependent on decisions made by the Secretary of State following a 

review of the supporting documentation submitted and given the 

complexity of the approval requests the approach to 2022/23 schools 

budgets would be subject to one of the scenarios outlined in paragraph 

 

4



 

 

24. 

 

Jane highlighted the recommendation which was for Schools Forum to 

approve Model 1 to affect the transfer of 0.5% of funding and would 

therefore need to consider further actions to manage the increasing 

demands for EHCPs and rising costs. 

 

Jane referred to the next steps and explained that the High Needs 

Financial plan covers a four-year period which is currently under review 

for the four financial years commencing with 2022/23.  Early indications 

suggest that the number of EHCPs receiving financial support and the 

costs of that support increasing is a significant challenge to financial 

sustainability.  The local authority was currently having an external 

review of the High Needs Block Development Plan to ensure the 

response is effective and efficient and was considering all potential 

options and individual factors within the SEND system that are driving the 

increase in demand and cost. 

 

Jane went through the responses in terms of the de-delegation of funding 
for Union Facilities Time and in terms of next steps the local authority 
introduction of a wide scheme for meeting the costs of union facilities 
time would need to be financially sustainable and have some certainty 
about that for the future and the current school funding environment does 
not present this situation.  Jane explained that de-delegation could only 
be delivered for maintained schools and as academy conversion 
continues the pool of funding available through de-delegation reduces.  
De-delegation also requires a specific consultation and Schools Forum 
approval and can only be approved on an annual basis.  The proposed 
changes to the National Funding Formula do reduce local authority 
flexibility in respect of school funding and it is uncertain whether such an 
action will be possible from 2023/24.  Jane explained the risk to the local 
authority of managing such a scheme and as such that a local authority 
managed scheme would not be pursued.  
 

Jenny Lawrence referred to the recommendations which would need to 

be fed into the process for what was submitted to the Secretary of State.  

Jenny invited comments/questions from Members before the 

recommendations were highlighted. 

 

Jane Lennie commented that with regards to the underfunding of SEN 

and the costs increasing as predicted this position would be the same 

every year and would be a rolling under funding by 0.5% every year for 

the rest of the school cohorts and for which she was not comfortable 

with. 

 

Jane agreed moving funds across systems is not the best position to be 

in but one of the challenges is that there is insufficient funding for the 

local authority to pay for special educational needs.  Jane reiterated that 

the position was not comfortable and not one the local authority would 

want to find themselves in but not withstanding that there are significant 

challenges to face through the high needs block and this proposed 

transfer is one of the mechanisms being sought to use in order to 

5



 

 

mitigate that properly. 

 

Jane Lennie stated that this was not a stand-alone issue for the County 

Council and unless it takes a stand at some point this would lead to a 

spiral of underfunding for all schools that are still maintained.  Jane 

Moore commented that this was a national issue and are not alone in 

facing the significant challenges around budgets.  Jane added the High 

Needs Development is achieving savings but not in the area of budget 

spend and the proposed transfer was saying that every area was being 

explored in order to manage this budget and the local authority are then 

in a stronger position to go back to the DfE regarding the levels of 

funding.    

 

Mrs Taylor added to Jane’s comments that there was no option but to go 

forward with the transfer and did not expect Schools Forum to support 

this.  Mrs Taylor was not comfortable with this and was not the way the 

local authority would like to work with schools as it had always had a 

good relationship with schools.  Mrs Taylor stated that for her to go to the 

DfE to say this was not sustainable the transfer needs to happen.  Mrs 

Taylor commented that she was disappointed with the responses to the 

consultation for this important issue and it would have been helpful to 

have a range of suggestions or how things could be done differently. 

 

Karen Allen commented that a lot of headteachers have had to cope with 

staff shortages and managing Covid cases which will have contributed to 

the low response number. 

 

Karen referred to paragraph 24 and the two different models and asked 

for clarification on these.  Jenny stated that Model 1 is within the gift of 

the local authority to deliver without a decision from the Secretary of 

State should Schools Forum agree to a transfer.  Jenny said that Model 2 

gives a better overall outcome when considering the impact for all 

Leicestershire schools but would require approval from the Secretary of 

State.  However, if the Secretary of State said no and Schools Forum 

had agreed Model 1 then Model 1 would be delivered. 

 

Karen asked if Schools Forum should decide to agree to the transfer and 

agree to Model 2 rather than Model 1 then Schools Forum cannot vote 

on this model as Model 1 is the only option.  Jenny said that the 

recommendations were such that Schools Forum were being asked for a 

decision on the transfer with another recommendation asking for the 

preferred model.  

 

Graham Bett said that the response was disappointing however with the 

local authority deciding to pursue a transfer it would be illogical for 

headteachers to respond.  Graham added that if the system is broken 

those who are ensuring the national system continues are the ones who 

are responsible. 

 

Chris Parkinson asked what the local authority perceived to be the risk 

for saying Schools Forum would not agree and that as a local authority 

6



 

 

support them not agreeing.  Chris added that Schools Forum are not 

voting for something that fixes the problem and reiterated Graham’s point 

about a system in place which is no longer working.  Chris said that the 

transfer only fractionally reduces the deficit so therefore does not change 

the problem. 

 

Jane Moore acknowledged Chris’ point and one that is discussed with 

Members and officers in the local authority.  However, it must pursue 

every possible mechanism in order to get the budget back in line before 

coming to a radical solution to this problem.  Jane said that that the 

deficit must be held and the current deficit means the local authority are 

having to make savings across the local authority to mitigate this deficit. 

 

Jenny reiterated Jane’s point that the deficit gives additional problems 

because it is reducing the money available to the local authority to 

commission new schools as the basic need for new places increases and 

the DfE have very clearly vested this decision to the Schools Forum so 

there is a risk that failure to make a decision on the matter may impact 

the reputation of Leicestershire County Council and the Schools Forum. 

 

Jane stated that she was not completely shutting down Chris Parkinson’s 

comment and in addition to this process CFS will go back to Members 

and have the conversation around what is next in terms of the proposal 

and what the messages are that go back to the DfE which needs to 

consider the overall financial position  Chris Parkinson commented that 

there is effectively no change to the local authority risk because the 

majority of the debt remains but spreads risks to other institutions which 

affects their finances and their ability to deliver services they are 

accountable for.  Jane commented that if the transfer is not made the 

£2m would have to be found from other areas across the authority and 

although it does not impact the overspend that deficit is still required to 

be recovered. 

 

Graham commented that it still does not resolve the situation by 

transferring money from schools or other departments. 

 

Recommendations: 

 

That Schools Forum note the outcome of the consultation and the 
response rate it received. 
 
Schools Forum noted the outcome. 
 
That Schools Forum approve a 0.5% (£2.3m) transfer of funding 
from the Schools Block to the High Needs Block of the Dedicated 
Schools Grant for 2022/23.  
 
12 voted against a transfer and there was one abstention. 
 
That Schools Forum determine the favoured model with which to 
deliver the Schools Block Transfer to the High Needs Block of the 
Dedicated Schools Grant for 2022/23. 

7



 

 

 
0 voted for Model 1; 2 voted for Model 2; 9 abstentions 
 
That Schools Forum notes the intention of the local authority to 
seek approval from the Secretary of State for approval of a 0.5% 
(£2.3m) transfer of funding from the Schools Block to the High 
Needs Block of the Dedicated Schools Grant for 2022/23 as set out 
in Model 1 should this not be agreed by Schools Forum. 
 
Schools Forum noted. 
 
That Schools Forum note the intention of the local authority to seek 
approval from the Secretary of State for approval of Model 2 from 
the Secretary of State through a variation in the Minimum per Pupil 
Funding level as its preferred methodology to affect the transfer in 
addition to Model 1. 
 
Schools Forum noted. 
 
That Schools Forum note the intention of not to pursue de-
delegation of funding from maintained schools to establish a 
scheme to fund Union Facilities Time. 
 
Schools Forum added the following recommendation; 
 
That Schools Forum note that the local authority would enter into 
negotiation with DNCC to scope a scheme for operation across 
Leicestershire. 
 
Graham Bett asked if the consultation exercise could be carried out 
within the next 2 weeks as it was felt the consultation was too tied in with 
the transfer consultation and therefore the response rate was low.  
 
Karen Allen asked how the conversations with academies and MATs was 
progressing as this was a difficult decision to make and if the de-
delegation option was pursued there was an ever-reducing number of 
maintained schools who would be funding this system.  Karen felt the 
consultation could be ran again but time constraints were an issue to see 
how this will work for all schools and be sustainable in the future.  
Graham commented that he was not leading on this so could not 
comment on discussions taking place but said that whatever the scheme 
was it must cover the institutions across the geographical area.  Graham 
said that the reason for the two weeks was that it then does not coincide 
with Christmas festivities in schools and can be moved forward. 
 
Jane Moore asked if it would be helpful to work with DNCC to look at an 
option for a de-delegation model. 
 
Jenny Lawrence said that in terms of formal de-delegation there would 
be an issue with the timescale if another consultation went out as there 
would not be enough time to get a decision for 2022/23 before the school 
budget deadline with the DfE so would question whether asking about 
de-delegation was appropriate as opposed to a scheme which would not 
inform a decision on de-delegation.  Jenny said that a de-delegation 

8



 

 

option would mean a decision by Schools Forum by mid-January. 
 
Jenny said that it was important to distinguish between working with 
unions on a scheme which is not de-delegation and involves schools 
choosing to contribute; this would be more sustainable as not dependent 
on local authority decision making in the future and gives individual 
schools the option to choose to enter it or not to enter it.  Jenny said that 
in the de-delegation scenario all maintained schools would be 
contributing whether they chose to or not but individual academies would 
be able to choose to participate. 
 
Maintained schools present at the meeting agreed that more information 

was needed about how non-maintained schools would contribute to such 

a scheme. 

 

Schools Forum noted. 

 

4. Any Other Business 
 
There was no further business. 
 

 

5. Date of Next Meeting 
 
19 January 2022, 2.00 pm - cancelled 
23 February 2022, 2.00 pm 
 

 

 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

SCHOOLS FORUM 
 

23 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

2022/23 SCHOOLS BUDGET 
   

Content Applicable to; School Phase; 

Maintained Primary and 
Secondary Schools 

X Pre School X 

Academies X Foundation Stage X 

PVI Settings X Primary X 

Special Schools / 
Academies 

X Secondary X 

Local Authority X Post 16 X 

  High Needs X 

 
 

Content Requires; By; 

Noting X Maintained Primary School 
Members 

 

Decision X Maintained Secondary 
School Members 

 

  Maintained Special School 
Members 

 

  Academy Members  

  All Schools Forum X 

 

 
 
 
Purpose of the Report 
1. The purpose of this report is to present the 2022/23 Dedicated Schools Grant 

Settlement for Leicestershire and the 2022/23 Schools Budget. 
 
2. This report builds upon a number of reports presented through the 2022/23 

financial year.  
 
Recommendations 
3. That Schools Forum approves the retention of the budget to fund future school 

growth (paragraph 15, item 2) 
 

11 Agenda Item 3



 

 

4. That Schools Forum approve the retention of budgets to meet the prescribed 
statutory duties of the local authority and to meet historic costs (Paragraph 15, 
item 3) 

 
5. That Schools Forum approve the centrally retained early years funding 

(Paragraph 15, item 5)  
 
6. That Schools Forum notes the number and average cost of commissioned 

places for children and young people with High Needs (Paragraph 45) 
  
7. That Schools Forum approve the action to be taken in respect of schools where 

the Special Educational Needs (SEN) notional budget is insufficient to meet the 
aggregated value of High Needs Funding Element 2 (Paragraphs 61-64) 

 
8. That Schools Forum note the average per pupil funding to be taken into 

account for recoupment for excluded pupils and other purposes (Paragraph 65) 
 
9. That Schools Forum note the payment rates for the Early Years Funding 

formula (Paragraph 70) 
 
 
Background 
10. This report builds upon those presented to Schools Forum during 2021 and 

sets out the local authority’s Schools Budget for 2022/23. 
 
11. The Schools Budget is the term given overall to the services funded from 

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). Local authorities are required to set the 
Schools Budget at least equal to the amount of DSG received. For 2022/23 the 
High Needs Block will continue to record a deficit which is required to be carried 
forward for recovery from future DSG under current legislation. The local 
authority can make no contribution to DSG without the approval of the 
Secretary of State, the Schools Budget is therefore set at the level of grant and 
must contain all its spending pressures within that grant.  

 
12. There is no change to the basic structure of DSG for 2022/23 and remains 

divided into four separate funding blocks; 
 

 Schools Block – funds delegated budgets for maintained schools and 
academies and school growth. 

 

 The Central Services Block – funds historic costs and other prescribed 
local authority areas of expenditure including the local authorities 
statutory duties for all schools previously funded through the Education 
Services Grant. 

 

 Early Years – funds the free entitlement to early education for 
disadvantaged 2 year olds and 3 & 4 year olds, including the 30 hours 
of provision for eligible parents and a maximum of 5% of the total cost 
of the services that support the early years sector 

 

12



 

 

 High Needs – funds provision for pupils with SEN, the PRU and other 
services for vulnerable children such as the Secondary Education 
Inclusion Partnerships, Children with Medical Needs and Specialist 
Teaching Services 

 
13. The 202/23 Children and Family Services Budget was considered by the 

Children and Family Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 25 January 
2022, by the Cabinet on 31 January 2022, budget proposals will be considered 
by the County Council on 11 February 2022 and is shown as Appendix A. 

 
 
Role of the Schools Forum in setting the 2022/23 Schools Budget 
14. The Central School Services Block holds the retained budgets for a number of 

areas of expenditure centrally retained by the local authority through provisions 
contained within the School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations, 
these budgets are subject to restrictions and some are subject to some 
decisions for the Schools Forum. 

 
15. There has been much debate on the role of the Schools Forum under the 

National Funding Formula (NFF) which has restricted local decision making in 
respect of school budgets. However, the role of Schools Forum has not 
changed, the following table sets out the decisions vested in the Schools Forum 
and which apply to all local authorities for 2022/23; 

 

Item Approval For  Action 

1. De-delegation from 
mainstream school budgets 

Consideration is currently being 
given to de-delegation of funding for 
Schools Improvement activities as 
the result of a late decision by the 
DfE to withdraw long standing grant 
from 2022/23. Should this progress 
a further meeting of the Schools 
Forum would be required before 31 
March to seek a decision. 
 
De-delegation can only be in 
respect of maintained primary and 
secondary schools only, all budgets 
for academies are required to be 
fully delegated. Only mainstream 
schools  
 

2. To create a fund for pupil 
number growth in order to 
support the local authority’s 
duty for place planning and 
agree the criteria for 
maintained schools and 
academies to access this fund. 

Schools Forum approved the policy 
for funding school growth at its 
meeting on 30 September 2019 
 
A revenue budget to meet the cost 
arising from commissioning 
additional school places required to 
meet the basic need for sufficient 

13



 

 

school places was established in 
2019. The proposed budget is 
£3.1m (2021/22 £2.4m) 
 

3. Funding for the local authority 
in order to meet prescribed 
statutory duties placed upon it. 
 
This funding now includes 
funding for local authority 
statutory duties for all schools 
previously funded through the 
retained duties element of ESG 
 
 

The budgets falling into this 
category are; 
 
 Servicing the Schools Forum 

£8,570 (2021/22 £8,570), this 
budget meets the cost of 
operating the Schools Forum 

 

 Admissions £322,094 (2021/22 
£329,375). This meets the local 
authority’s statutory 
responsibilities for admissions 
and is funded from the Schools 
Block.  

 

 Local Authority Statutory / 
Regulatory Duties, Asset 
Management and Central 
Support Services £1.871m. 
This largely consists of 
recharges from services 
outside the Children and 
Families Department that 
support budgets funded from 
DSG such as finance, ICT, 
property. It also includes 
funding previously allocated as 
central teacher pension grant. 

  

4. Funding for historic costs met 
by the local authority. Following 
the baselining exercise 
undertaken to determine the 
2017/18 DSG baselines the 
Department for Education have 
set out their expectation that 
these costs should unwind over 
time and that funding released 
should be recycled to school 
budgets. This may be the case 
for the element relating to 
schools causing concern but 
no funding will be released 
from premature retirement for 
significant periods of time given 

 Premature Retirement Costs 
£674,900 (2021/22 £674,900), 
these are historic costs relating 
to school staff where the 
commitment remains with the 
local authority and relates to 
both maintained schools and 
academies. This appears on 
the Human Resources line of 
the budget statement 

 

 Miscellaneous £248,000 
(2021/22 £248,000). This is the 
commissioning budget for 
maintained schools causing 
concern, whilst the number of 
maintained schools has 

14



 

 

that the local authority remains 
supporting such costs arising 
from pre 1997 

reduced overall the number of 
schools requiring LA support is 
largely unchanged.  

 
 

5. Funding for central early years 
expenditure, which includes 
funding for checking eligibility 
of pupils for an early years 
place in addition to the local 
authorities statutory 
responsibilities in this area. 
Centrally retained funding must 
not exceed 5% of the Early 
Years DSG 
 

Schools Forum are asked to 
approve expenditure of £1.74m 
(2022/23 £1.75m)  
 

 
16. Local authorities are required to carry any DSG deficit forward for recovery 

against future years grant and may also only contribute local resources to the 
Schools Budget with the permission of the Secretary of State.  

 
17. The DfE set out requirements in respect of any DSG deficit in September 2020. 

This includes the drafting of a management plan which should be regularly 
updated and presented to Schools Forum and other stakeholders. In 
Leicestershire this requirement is served by the High Needs Development Plan 
and updates are regularly presented to School Forum. There is no longer a 
requirement to submit this plan to the DfE, the DSG Conditions of Grant now 
place a duty on local authorities to co-operate with the DfE in handling any 
deficit and provide information as and when requested. The DfE may also place 
specific requirements on local authorities where the Secretary of State believes 
that there is insufficient action to address any deficit. This new process was 
introduced for the first time in 2020/21, it is unknown whether any local 
authorities have been asked for information and what if any actions have been 
taken by the DfE as a result. 

 
18. There is some indications that the DfE are developing a revised approach to 

their support & challenge to LA DSG deficit management. In March 2021 it 
announced Safety Valve Agreements with five local authorities whereby 
additional funding would be provided if agreed actions and milestones in 
reducing the deficit are delivered. It is not currently known what progress is 
being made within these local authorities and whether additional funding has 
been given. There is no information to date on whether further agreements are 
being negotiations nor on any threshold that triggers DfE discussion.  

 
19. Where the decision making power is vested in the Schools Forum, the local 

authority may seek adjudication from the Secretary of State should approval not 
be granted. This would be sought should Schools Forum not approve the 
centrally funded items, there is no other source of funding for the local authority 
to meet these commitments which are all incurred as a result of the local 

15



 

 

authority’s statutory role in schools. Retention of these budgets is consistent 
with that of previous years. 

 
20. A further budget for school copyright is held centrally under provisions within 

the School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations. This funds 
copyright licences within a nationally negotiated contract by the Secretary of 
State for all academies and maintained schools, as a result of this national 
contract individual schools no longer meet these costs directly. The 2022/23 
cost for Leicestershire is confirmed at £538,140. 

 
Dedicated Schools Grant 
21. For 2022/23 the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) remains calculated in four 

separate blocks as set out below; 
 

Funding Block Areas Funded Basis for Settlement 

Schools Block 
Est £470.7m 
consisting of; 
 

 School 
formula 
funding  
£467.6m 

 

 School 
Growth  
£3.1m 

Individual budgets for 
maintained schools and 
academies.  
 
Growth funding for the 
revenue costs of delivering 
additional mainstream 
school places and to meet 
the local authorities duty to 
ensure a sufficient number 
of school places.  
 
DSG is notionally allocated 
to Leicestershire for all 
maintained schools and 
academies. A locally agreed 
funding formula is applied to 
this to determine school 
budgets, for maintained 
schools these are allocated 
directly by the local 
authority, for academies the 
funding is recouped from the 
settlement by the Education 
and Skills Funding Agency 
(ESFA) who then directly 
fund academies. 
 
 

2022/23 reflects the DfE’s 
intention for the a National 
Funding Formula (NFF) for 
schools which attributes 
units of funding to pupil 
characteristics. 
 
The grant settlement is 
based on; 

 the aggregate of pupil led 
characteristics for each 
individual school; 

 an allocation for school 
led factors. 

 
These allocations will be 
fully delegated to schools.  
 
 
The NFF means that all 
local authorities receive the 
same amount of funding for 
a number of pupil related 
characteristics. Difference in 
funding levels relate to the 
incidence of pupil 
characteristics rather than 
differing funding levels 
 
 
The allocation of funding to 
support new school growth 
will be retained to meet the 
future costs of new and 

16



 

 

expanding schools. 
 
In respect of school formula 
funding this represents a 
cash increase of 3.9%  
 
 

Central School 
Services Block 
£3.7m 

This funds historic financial 
commitments related to 
schools such as premature 
retirement costs, some 
budgets related to schools 
that are centrally retained 
e.g. admissions, servicing 
the Schools Forum and 
school copyright licences. 
This block now includes 
funding from the retained 
duties element of the former 
Education Services Grant 
for the responsibilities that 
local authorities have for all 
pupils such as school place 
planning and asset 
management. 
 
 

This is distributed through a 
per pupil allocation basis 
and is retained by the local 
authority. 
 
The funding allocation for 
some historic financial 
commitments is being 
reduced nationally as the 
DfE have an expectation 
that these financial 
commitments will naturally 
expire. However, this 
element of funding meets 
the cost of historic 
premature retirement costs 
for teaching staff that will 
remain. This will be a 
financial pressure for the 
medium term as this funding 
is phased out but 
commitments retained.  
 

High Needs 
Block  
 
£94.8m 

Funds special schools and 
other specialist providers for 
high needs pupils and 
students, the pupil referral 
unit and support services for 
high needs pupils including 
high needs students in 
further education provision. 
 
As with the Schools Block 
this includes funding for 
special academies and post 
16 providers which is 
recouped by the ESFA who 
then directly fund 
academies. 
 
 
Confirmation of the 2022/23 
grant is not expected until 

The formula is based upon 
population of 0-19 year olds 
and proxy indicators for 
additional educational need 
including deprivation, ill 
heath, disability and low 
attainment. Also included is 
an element based on 
historic spend. The formula 
also includes a funding floor 
to ensure that local 
authorities do not receive a 
funding reduction as a result 
of the introduction of the 
formula. Leicestershire 
receives £2.6m through this 
element. 
 
The grant allocation 
includes the additional 

17



 

 

March 2022. 
 

funding announced by the 
DfE following the December 
Spending Review and is a 
cash increase of 14% 
 

Early Years Est 
£36.1m   
 

Funds the Free Entitlement 
to Early Education (FEEE) 
for 2, 3 and 4 year olds and 
an element of the early 
learning and childcare 
service. 
 
The grant is based on the 
universal hourly base rate 
plus additional needs 
measured with reference to 
free school meals, disability 
living allowance and english 
as an additional language.  
 
The initial settlement is 
based on the October 2021 
census. The grant will be 
updated in July 2022 for the 
January census and again 
in June 2022 for the January 
2022 census. The final grant 
will not be confirmed until 
June 2023. 
 

The allocation is based on 
individual pupil 
characteristics and 
converted to a rate per hour 
of participation. 
Leicestershire receives the 
lowest rate of £4.61 per 
hour for 3 and 4 year olds 
and the lowest rate of £5.57 
per hour for disadvantaged 
2 year olds. 
 
This position is an increase 
of funding of £0.21 per hour 
for 2 year old funding and 
£0.17. 

£605.3m 2022/23 Estimated DSG 

 
22. The 2022/23 MTFS continues to set the overall Schools Budget as a net nil 

budget at local authority level. However, in 2022/23 there is a funding gap of 
£9.1m on the High Needs Block which will be carried forward as an overspend 
against the grant.  

 
Schools Block  
23. The DfE have further stated their intention to move to a ‘hard’ National Funding 

Formula (NFF) whereby budget allocations for all maintained schools and 
academies is calculated by the DfE. The NFF funds all pupils at the same rate 
irrespective of the authority in which they are educated. The NFF uses pupil 
characteristics each with a nationally set funding rate to generate school level 
funding to local authorities. Within the NFF only the per pupil entitlement is 
universal to all, other factors reflect the incidence of additional needs such as 
deprivation and low prior attainment. Funding levels between local authorities 
and individual schools within those local authorities will, and continue to, vary 
as a result of pupil characteristics rather than national funding levels.  

 

18



 

 

24. School funding remains a ‘soft’ school funding formula for 2022/3 which allows 
local authorities able to adopt their own funding formula. A consultation was 
undertaken by the DfE in the summer on the next steps towards a ’hard’ 
formula in which proposals would restrict the local authority flexibility for 
2023/34 where a local formula is adopted with a potential hard formula in 
2024/25, the outcome of this consultation is unknown at this point. 

 
25. Within the Schools Block, but separate to funding for individual schools, local 

authorities receive funding for the initial revenue costs of commissioning 
additional primary and secondary school places. The allocation for 2022/23 is 
£3.1m. The revenue cost of commissioning a new school ranges from £0.5m to 
£0.8m for a primary and £2.2m to £2.5m for a secondary, depending upon size 
and opening arrangements. 26 new primary and 3 new secondary schools are 
expected to be built in Leicestershire in the medium to long term. The revenue 
requirement for new schools is difficult to assess as it is dependent upon the 
speed of housing developments, growth in the basic need for additional school 
places, the school funding formula and the level and the methodology for the 
DSG growth funding calculation. The DfE summer consultation on school 
funding proposed moving to a national system to meet the cost of new school 
growth  

2022/23 School Funding Formula  
26. The DfE have further stated their intention to move to a ‘hard’ National Funding 

Formula (NFF) whereby budget allocations for all maintained schools and 
academies is calculated by the DfE. The NFF funds all pupils at the same rate 
irrespective of the authority in which they are educated. The NFF uses pupil 
characteristics each with a nationally set funding rate to generate school level 
funding to local authorities. Within the NFF only the per pupil entitlement is 
universal to all, other factors reflect the incidence of additional needs such as 
deprivation and low prior attainment. Funding levels between local authorities 
and individual schools within those local authorities will, and continue to, vary 
as a result of pupil characteristics rather than national funding levels.  

 
27. School funding remains a ‘soft’ school funding formula for 2022/3 which allows 

local authorities able to adopt their own funding formula. A consultation was 
undertaken in the summer on the next steps towards a ’hard’ formula in which 
proposals would restrict the local authority flexibility for 2023/34 where a local 
formula is adopted with a potential hard formula in 2024/25, the outcome of this 
consultation is unknown at this point. .  

 
28. Within the Schools Block, but separate to funding for individual schools, local 

authorities receive funding for the initial revenue costs of commissioning 
additional primary and secondary school places. The allocation for 2022/23 is 
£3.1m The revenue cost of commissioning a new school ranges from £0.5m to 
£0.8m for a primary and £2.2m to £2.5m for a secondary, depending upon size 
and opening arrangements. 26 new primary and 3 new secondary schools are 
expected to be built in Leicestershire in the medium to long term. The revenue 
requirement for new schools is difficult to assess as it is dependent upon the 
speed of housing developments, growth in the basic need for additional school 
places, the school funding formula and the level and the methodology for the 

19



 

 

DSG growth funding calculation. The DfE summer consultation on school 
funding proposed moving to a national system to meet the cost of new school 
growth  

 
School Funding Formula  
29. The NFF delivers a minimum amount of funding per pupil, £4,265 for primary 

and £5,321 for Key Stage 3 and £5,831 per Key Stage 4 pupil. Despite the 
overall increase in budget, at individual school level 72 (32% of primary 
schools) and 7 (16% of secondary schools) remain on the funding floor and is a 
slight improvement from 40% of primary and 19% of secondary schools for 
2021/22. These schools, despite additional funding, may experience a real 
terms decrease in income.  As the funding guarantee is at pupil level, schools 
with decreases in pupil numbers will see an overall decrease in budget 
allocation.   
 

30. Schools will also receive grant to offset additional costs including such as those 
encountered through the Introduction of the Health and Social Care Levy and 
the Pupil Premium where rates have also increased for 2022/23. 

 
31. The NFF for schools is based upon the 2021 School Census but funding for 

local authorities is based upon the pupil characteristics recorded on the 2020 
school census. Nationally a concern remains that the number of pupils 
recorded in receipt of Free School Meals and pupils that trigger deprivation 
funding may have increased as a result of the Coronavirus Pandemic. Any 
increase would be unfunded and could result in the cost of fully delivering the 
NFF being unable to be met from the Schools Bock DSG. This position will be 
reviewed once individual school data from the 2021 Census has been 
analysed. The national regulations allow for an adjustment within the formula to 
ensure the budgets for schools can be met from the DSG allocation 

 
32. It remains possible for local authorities to transfer up to 0.5% of the Schools 

Block DSG to High Needs following consultation with schools and with the 
approval of the Schools Forum. Secretary of State approval can be sought 
where Schools Forum do not agree a transfer, where local authorities wish to 
transfer more than 0.5% and for local variations to some of the technical 
aspects of the NFF. Consultation was carried out with schools on two options 
for a transfer in September to which thirteen responses were received from a 
total of 271 consultees. Of the twelve complete responses 10 disagreed with 
the transfer with two agreement. 

 
33. The Schools Forum were recommended to approve the transfer on 15 

November 2021 but voted to reject the transfer. A request for Secretary of State 
approval for the transfer was submitted for both options set out within the 
consultation, the Secretary of State has not approved the transfer which would 
have reduced the High Needs deficit and school budgets by £2.3m for 2022/23.  

34. Local authorities were required to submit their funding formula to the ESFA in 
mid-January, confirmation of adherence to all regulations is awaited. School 
Budgets for maintained schools are required to be issued by local authorities by 
28 February. The ESFA will confirm budgets for academies by 31 March. 

 

20



 

 

35. Appendix A sets out the 2022/23 Funding Formula rates and the number of 
funded units. 

 
De-Delegation 
 
36. As set out in the report to Forum on 15 November 2021 de-delegation to fund a 

scheme to meet the costs of Union Facilities time is not being pursued for 
2022/23. The local authority has committed to working with unions to find a 
solution to this long-standing issue. 

 
37. Local authorities have received the School Improvement, Monitoring and 

Brokerage Grant (the grant) from the DfE to fund their school improvement 
functions for maintained schools. The DfE consulted in the autumn on some 
changes to this funding arrangement. The consultation was based on the DfE’s 
view that there should be a clear distinction between core school improvement 
activities funded through the local authority budget and those ‘additional’ 
activities delivered to maintained schools that should be funded by de-
delegation. It was proposed that the grant be removed and that this funding to 
provide consistency with how Multi Academy Trusts (MAT’s) were funded for 
such activities through the top-slice applied to school budgets.  

 
38. The outcome of the consultation was published in January which has confirmed 

that the grant being reduced by 50% in 2022/23 and removed in total from 
2023/24. To allow local authorities to plug the funding gap changes were made 
to the School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations to make 
provision for de-delegation for school improvement activities following 
consultation with schools and approval from the Schools Forum. The DfE 
recognise that their timescales present more challenge than in other years but 
have clarified that whilst councils needed to submit their formula budgets to the 
ESFA by 21 January, they need only to confirm schools’ budget shares before 
de-delegation to maintained schools by 28 February, and confirm schools’ 
budget shares after de-delegation by 31 March. This gives time for consultation 
but is out of line with the process to secure Schools Forum decision as followed 
in previous years. 

 
39. An update on this will be given to the meeting. Should de-delegation be 

pursued a decision will be required from Schools Forum prior to 31 March. Only 
maintained school members of Schools Forum are allowed to vote on any 
proposal for de-delegation. 

 
Schools Supplementary Grant 
40. For 2022/23 mainstream school funding is increased by a Supplementary Grant 

from the DfE totalling £1.2bn nationally. This additional funding is to 
compensate for the additional costs of the Health and Social Care Levy and 
‘other’ costs. It is expected that this grant will be rolled into the NFF in 2023/24 
but no methodology has been given for the merger. The amounts for individual 
schools have not yet been confirmed but the following rates have been 
published by the DfE. 

 

 2022/23 

21



 

 

£ 
per Pupil 

Primary Pupil 97 

KS3 Pupil 137 

KS4 Pupil 155 

Lump Sum 3,680 

FSM Primary 85 

FSM Secondary 124 

Post 16 35 

 
41. Additional DSG has also been received in the December High Needs Block 

settlement in line with the additional funding for mainstream schools. Unlike the 
grant for mainstream schools the use of this additional funding is at the 
discretion of the local authority. In line with the NFF per pupil increases the 
banding rates payable to special schools will be increased by 2.6%. 

 
42. The schools supplementary grant is only payable to public sector employers. 

This means that further education colleges, sixth form colleges, independent 
learning providers, as well as private and voluntary sector early years providers 
are not eligible to receive this funding. 

 
High Needs 
43. The Spending Review included additional funding within the formula and an 

additional allocation to reflect the additional costs for providers from the Social 
Care Levy and other cost pressures in special schools.  

 
44.  The High Needs DSG is £94.7m and an increase of 14% and an increase from 

the July provisional grant settlement. The formula allocates funding across a 
set of pupil-related indicators and also includes an allocation based on historic 
spend. The DfE have stated their working assumptions on future year grant 
increases, both this and the additional funding announced in December 
improves the overall financial position. However, whilst the additional grant 
improves the overall financial position to align expenditure within the grant 
allocation. A review of the formula was expected alongside the publication of 
the findings of the long awaited national SEND Review. However, this appears 
to be further delayed.  

 
45. Appendix B set out the number of specialist places commissioned for 2022/23 

and their average unit cost. It should, be noted that these are the minimum 
number of places to be provided and additional places may be commissioned 
throughout the year as need arises. The average unit cost will also vary as 
needs and costs change throughout the year. 

 
46. The forecast position on the High Needs element of the DSG is shown below: 
 

 

22



 

 

 
 
47. The financial plan will be subject to change following the findings of the 

diagnostic work currently being completed by Newton Europe. This will reflect 
any savings opportunities identified, changes to the growth trajectory and the 
expected 2021/22 deficit at the close of the financial year. 

 

48. National research continues to set out systematic problems with the SEND 
system that are responsible for high needs deficits, yet to date there is no 
response to addressing them by the DfE with the exception of additional 
funding in the 2022/23 high needs settlement. However, increased funding 
levels do not provide a solution, research by the Local Government Association 
reported that there are structural features of the SEND system which would 
lead to deficits even if budgets were significantly increased and that local 
authorities bear all the risk in this area but have no levers with which to 
influence demand and cost. The DfE have undertaken a review of the SEND 
system but it is unclear when any findings from that research will be published.  

 

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

High Needs Dedicated Schools Grant -91,393 -95,963 -98,842 -101,807

Additional DSG - 2022/23 settlement -3,676 -3,676 -3,676 -3,676

Placement Costs 95,163 101,052 109,361 117,271

Other HNB Cost 9,381 9,381 9,381 9,381

Commissioning Cost - New Places 3,131 3,664 3,727 2,221

Invest to Save Project Costs 989 465 0 0

Total Expenditure 108,664 114,562 122,469 128,873

Funding Gap Pre Savings 13,595 14,924 19,952 23,390

Demand Savings -282 -1,009 -2,048 -3,376

Benefit of Local Provision and Practice Improvements -4,215 -6,190 -8,844 -11,072

Total Savings -4,497 -7,200 -10,892 -14,447

Annual Revenue Funding Gap 9,098 7,724 9,060 8,943

2019/20 Deficit Brought Forward 7,062

2020/21 High Needs Deficit Brought Forward 10,387

2021/22 High Needs Deficit Brought Forward P6 Forecast 10,521

Cummulative High Needs Funding Gap 37,068 44,792 53,852 62,794

Surplus (-ve) / Deficit Other DSG Blocks Forward -8,163 -10,125 -5,497 -997

Surplus (-ve) / Deficit Other DSG Blocks In Year -1,962 4,628 4,500 997

Dedicated Schools Grant Surplus (-ve) / Deficit 26,943 39,295 52,855 62,794

Surplus / Deficit as % of Total DSG 4% 6% 8% 10%

23



 

 

49. Local authorities are now required to carry forward DSG deficits to the following 
year and may only now contribute to DSG with the approval of the Secretary of 
State. Whilst this is the approach the DfE have encapsulated in legislation in 
the medium term, it is not a sustainable or reasonable approach. Without the 
DfE addressing this through additional funding, local authorities will be required 
to set aside resources to offset the deficit. 

 
50. In March 2021 the DfE announced Safety Valve Agreements with five local 

authorities under additional DSG would be allocated to remove deficits be 
granted subject to the delivery of agreed actions and timescales. Nationally a 
further £150m has been allocated for this purpose. It is not known which local 
authorities are in discussion with the DfE and may be in line for additional 
funding other than they are the authorities with the highest deficits, nor is it 
possible to identify the threshold at which discussions with the DfE are 
triggered. Leicestershire has not been approached to discuss the DSG deficit 
but has informed the DfE that it is willing to do so. 

  
Central Services Block  
51. The central services block funds school-related expenditure items such as 

existing school-based premature retirement costs, copyright licences under a 
national DfE contract for all schools and other historic costs and the settlement 
is £3.1m for 2022/23 and includes funding transferred in respect of the former 
teacher pay and the provisional settlement continues an annual reduction of 
20% for the Historic Costs element of the settlement but a guarantee remains in 
place to ensure that funding doesn’t decrease below the financial commitment 
to meet former teacher employment costs. This block also provides an element 
of funding to support the Education Effectiveness function. The recent funding 
consultation asked for views on transferring this funding from DSG into the 
Local Government Funding Settlement from 2023/24. 

Early Years Block 
52. Nationally early years funding has been increased by £66m.  The grant remains 

determined by the number of children participating in early years education.  
The funding supports the 30 hours Free Entitlement to Early Education (FEEE) 
for three and four year olds and continued delivery of the early years offer for 
disadvantaged two year olds. The increase in funding equates to £0.08 per 
hour (1.5%) for 2 year olds and  £0.06  per hour (1%) for 3 and 4 year olds. 
Leicestershire continues to receive the lowest rate per hour at £5.36 per hour 
for 2 year olds and £4.44 per hour for 3 and 4 year olds. The maximum of 5% 
of the overall settlement is retained to fund the early learning service which 
fulfils local authority’s statutory duty to ensure sufficiency of places for those 
parents that request one. 

 
Funding School Growth 
53. Within the Schools Block, but separate to funding for individual schools, local 

authorities receive funding for the initial revenue costs of commissioning 
additional primary and secondary school places For 2022/23 the grant is 
confirmed as £2.4m for its two distinct elements; 

 

24



 

 

 a)  Explicit i.e. funding to be given to schools increasing as a result of the 
basic need for school places; and,  

 
b)  Implicit i.e. the cost of protection and pupil number adjustments as a result 

of age range changes.  
 

54. Schools Forum agreed a revised Growth Policy at its meeting of 30 September 
2019 which establishes a link to the additional school places delivered through 
the capital programme, the increased cost base as a result of expansion in 
schools prior to mainstream funding being generated, the timing of growth as 
well as affordability. 

 
55. It should be noted that: 
 

 the growth fund relates exclusively to mainstream schools and cannot 
be used to support new SEND provision without a transfer from the 
schools to high needs block, the cost of commissioning new SEND 
provision falls to be met from the high needs block and contributes to 
the overall deficit. 

 The growth fund cannot be used to meet the costs of general growth to 
popularity and / or general demographic growth not related to the basic 
need for additional school places. This is managed through lagged 
funding 

 
56. The DfE’s recent consultation on 2023/24 school funding sought views on a 

national system for funding school growth. To date the outcome of that 
consultation isn’t known but a second phase of consultation is expected to 
consider this is detail. 

 
Dedicated Schools Grant Reserve 
57. It is forecast that the DSG reserve will remain in deficit for the period of the 

MTFS as a result of the continued and increasing overspend on high needs, 
this will partially be offset by the accumulation of funding allocated to the 
authority to meet the revenue costs of new and expanding schools.  

 
58. Under new accounting rules implemented in 2020 where a local authority’s 

Schools Budget shows a budget deficit relating funding has to be set aside to 
cover that deficit, and authorities are prohibited from contributing funding from 
its general budget. 

 
59. The estimated balance on DSG at 31 March 2022 is set out below: 
 

 Schools 
Block 
£,000 

High 
Needs 
Block 
£,000 

Early 
Years 
Block 
£,000 

Central 
Block 
£,000 

Total £,000 

Balance 
1/4/21 

6,306 (17,449) (68) 2 (11,209) 

2021/22 
Movement 

2,263 (10,875) 1,276 - (7,336) 

25



 

 

Estimated 
Balance 
31/3/22 

8,569 (28,324) 1,276 2 (18,545) 

 
 Note - Figures in brackets denote a deficit 
 
60. Whilst the table above breaks down the DSG deficit into its individual funding 

blocks this is not a requirement and nationally the requirement is to show the 
DSG Reserve as a whole. The recent consultation on 2023/24 school funding 
suggests a movement to a national system for funding the revenue costs of 
schools growth which offsets the high needs deficit. Whilst a national system for 
funding school growth may have future benefits for Leicestershire as additional 
schools open, loss of this funding stream may result in the overall DSG deficit 
growing at a faster rate than expected. 

 
Notional SEN Budget 
61. The Notional SEN budget is an identified amount of funding within a schools 

overall delegated budget that is to contribute to the special educational 
provision of children with SEN or disabilities and is to guide schools in the 
allocation of resources to meet additional needs of pupils. In terms of high 
needs the national funding system sets out that element 2 funding is met from 
the notional SEN budget: 

 
 
 

 
 
62. The calculation of the Notional SEN Budget is locally defined and is unchanged 

for 2020/21. The calculation captures the formula factors that correlate to the 
expected incidence of SEN rather than indicators that are the result of an 

£6,000

E l e m e n t

 

1

 

f u n d i n g

 

i s

 

w i t h i n

 

t h e

 

s c h o o l

 

d e l e g a t e d

 

b u d g e t

 

a n d

 

t h e

 

e x p e c t e d

 

c o s t

 

o f

 

p r o v i s i o n

 

f o r

 

a l l

 

p u p i l s

£4,000

* Delegated budget refers to the S251 Statement for maintained schools, GAG for academies and Core Funding for FE Providers

£10,000
High Cost, Low Incidence

Funded by 

school from 

delegated 

budget*

First £6,000 of cost of 

provision specified in 

Education, Health and Care 

Plan

E

l

e

m

e

n

t

 

2

Funded by 

local 

authority

Paid by 

Local 

Authority for 

each 

occupied 

place - may 

be more 

than one 

funding 

authority

Total cost of provision 

specified in Education, Health 

and Care Plan Needs less 

£6,000

E

l

e

m

e

n

t

 

3

Element 3 funding - sometimes referred to as 'Top-

up' is paid where the additional provision within 

the Education, Health and Care Plan exceeds 

£6,000 by the local authority with financial 

responsibility for the pupil and is in addition to the 

school delegated budget

Element 2 Funding is met within the school 

delegated budget from the Notional SEN Budget. 

This is subsidiary calculation within the delegated 

budget consisting of 4% AWPU, 50% Low Prior 

Attainment and 67% IDACI. It is a financial 

measure of the expected level of SEND within the 

school population.

Element 1 Funding is the delegated pupil led 

funding for all schools and not affected by the 

individual level of need of pupils

Universal 

Universal provision for all 

Pupils

E

l

e

m

e

n

t

 

1

Low Cost, High Incidence

26



 

 

identified SEN needs through, for example, the number of EHCP’s within the 
school. The proportions and funding factors upon which the notional SEN 
budget are calculated are detailed out in the following table, the calculation is 
individual to each school and therefore the proportion of the overall school 
budget will vary: 

  

Funding Factor 2022/23 % to 
Notional 

SEN 

Age Weighted Pupil Unit 4% 

Prior Attainment 50% 

IDACI 67% 

 
Total Notional SEN Budget 
Contained within the Funding 
Formula 

 
£34.96m 

 
 As the Notional SEN Budget is intrinsically linked to the funding formula it is 

subject to similar increased to that for overall pupil funding. The 2022/23 
notional SEN budget is an increase of 1.9% from 2021/11 

 
63. In accordance with the High Needs Operational Guidance the local authority 

will continue to assess schools where the notional SEN budget is insufficient to 
meet commitments to element 2 funding. This compares the aggregated 
commitment to Element 2 costs and notional SEN budget in December. Where 
the notional budget is shown to be insufficient to meet commitments an 
additional payment will be made to schools. Schools should, within their 
management processes, consider how their SEN notional budget is fully 
deployed to support pupils within the mainstream school environment. 

 
64. The process above is unchanged from previous years. The Department is at 

the early stages of formulating a new approach to funding pupils with SEN 
across schools. This work will also consider whether there are any alternative 
funding mechanisms are able to better reflect costs within schools with 
disproportionally high numbers of SEN pupils 

 
Excluded Pupils 
65. The arrangements for reclaiming funding from schools excluding pupils no 

longer solely refer to the deduction being based upon the age weighted pupil 
unit and refers to the average per pupil funding value for primary, Key Stage 3 
and Key Stage 4. These values are detailed in the following table and will be 
applied as the deduction to school budgets from April 2022.  

  

School Phase Annual 
Rate 

£ 

Daily  
Rate 

£ 

 
Primary 

 
3,734.84 

 
19.66 

Key Stage 3 5,266.14 27.72 

Key Stage 4 5,934.88 31.24 

27



 

 

66. It should be noted that budget deductions for permanently excluded pupils are 
required from the excluding schools under the finance regulations irrespective 
of whether the excluded pupil was recorded on the October census driving the 
school budget. 

 
67. These rates will also be applied to the funding adjustments made in relation to 

dual registered pupils at Oakfield, the charges levied for the education of 
children with medical needs and will be recommended to the Secondary 
Education Inclusion Partnerships.   

 
Pupil Premium 
68. Pupil Premium rates have increased for 2022/23: 
 

  2022/23 
£ per 
Pupil 

2021/22 
£ per 
Pupil 

Primary Free School Meals 1,385 1,345 

Secondary Free School Meals 985 955 

Looked After and Previously Looked After 
Children 

2,410 2,345 

Service Premium 320 310 

  
69. The allocations are passported intact by the local authority to maintained 

schools for eligible pupils on the school roll but are retained by the local 
authority for looked after children which is allocated by the Head of the Virtual 
School, academies receive funding directly from the ESFA. 

 
2022/23 Early Years Provider Budgets 
70. Early year provider funding rates are set out below, the base rate has increased 

by £0.16 per hour for 3 and 4 year olds and by £0.20 per hour for 2 year olds as 
a result of the national increase of funding. 

  

3 and 4 Year olds Per Hour 
 

Base Rate £4.31 

Deprivation top-up £0.04 - £0.08 

Special Needs top-up £6.99 

 

2 Year olds Per Hour 
 

2 Year Old Base Rate £5.27 

2 Year Old Special Needs top-up £6.99 

 
 

The Local Authority Budget 
71. Leicestershire County Council remains in a financially challenging position. The 

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was considered by the Cabinet on 11 
February and will be considered by the Council Council on 23 February. The 
MTFS sets out a position of a balanced budget for 2022/23 with a budget gap 
of £8m in 2023/24 and rising to £40m by 2025/26. The proposals for Children 

28



 

 

and Family Services were considered in detail by the Children and Family 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 25 January. The proposed 
Budget is summarised in Appendix C. 

 
72. In order to set out the full context of the financial challenges facing the 

department the provisions for growth and savings set out in the Children and 
Family Services budget for 2022/23 – 2025/26 are summarised below. The 
significant challenge within this section of the budget continues to be the growth 
in the number and cost of social care placements and the staff required to 
support both services for both looked after children and vulnerable children and 
their families The budget makes provision for continued increase in numbers of 
looked after children but also a savings target to reduce the average unit cost of 
placements. The department, through the Children’s Innovation Partnership 
and the Defining Children’s Services for the Future programme are 
investigating options for new service operating models in order to mitigate 
growth and deliver savings; 

  
 

 

GROWTH 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

£000 £000 £000 £000

Demand & cost increases

** G1 Demographic growth- Social Care Placements 2,265 7,715 13,075 19,250

** G2 Front-line social care staff - increased caseloads 3,100 3,840 5,075 5,595

** G3 Social Care market premia to support recruitment 20 40 60 80

** G4 Unaccompanied Asylum Seekers - additional demand 50 100 150 200

TOTAL 5,435 11,695 18,360 25,125

References SAVINGS 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

£000 £000 £000 £000

** CF1 Eff Pathways workstream - Focus on prevention, drift and 

duration of interventions across all pathways -1,055 -1,270 -1,335 -1,450

** CF2 Eff Settings workstream - Reduced care placement costs 

through growth of in-house capacity & supported lodgings 

and a review of placements -2,115 -5,175 -7,250 -10,500

** CF3 Eff Disabled Children's Service Enablement Workstream -100 -200 -250 -300

Total Defining CFS For the Future Programme -3,270 -6,645 -8,835 -12,250

** CF4 Eff Innovation Partnership - Creation of Assessment & 

Resource team and Hub and investment in residential 

accomodation -250 -500 -750 -1,250

** CF5 Eff Departmental efficiency savings -250 -500 -750 -1,000

TOTAL -3,770 -7,645 -10,335 -14,500

References used in the following tables

*  items unchanged from previous Medium Term Financial Strategy

** items included in the previous Medium Term Financial Strategy which have been amended

Eff - Efficiency saving

SR - Service reduction

Inc - Income

References

29



 

 

 
Capital Programme  
73.  The proposed Children and Family Services capital programme totals £94.1m, 

for which the majority (£89.1m) there is external funding expected, resulting in 
only £5m call on LCC capital funding over the four year life of the proposed 
MTFS. The programme continues to focus upon the delivery of additional 
primary and secondary school places and additional places to be delivered to 
support the High Needs Development Plan. £62m is proposed to be invested in 
the provision of additional placements; £7m for SEN. £7m for investment in 
residential homes and £10.6m for other schemes as per the summary table 
below:  

 

CFS Capital Programme 
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Additional School Places 24,113 19,342 14,591 4,250 62,296 

SEND Programme 5,912 8,000 0 0 13,912 

Residential Investment 2,259 1,500 1,750 1,750 7,259 

Other Capital 2,700 2,700 2,700 2,500 10,600 

Total 34,984 31,542 19,041 8,500 94,067 

 
 
Provision of Additional School Places  
The investment in additional school places totals £62.3m over four years including 
£24.1m next year. The programme is funded through the Basic Need grant from the 
DfE and S106 developer contributions. For the latter it is assumed that the receipt 
will fully fund the scheme.  

 
SEND Programme 
The total investment in the SEND programme is £13.9m and contains funding for 
completion of the developments to support the High Needs Development plan and 
the completion of the Department for Education (DfE) funded school for pupils with 
Social, Emotional and Mental Health Needs (SEMH).  
 
Residential Design Brief 
Provision for capital investment of £2.5m was previously included in the MTFS to 
develop an assessment hub and flexible multi-functional properties to create in-
house capacity to provide a better suitability of placements and at lower cost. This 
phase is progressing well with properties purchased and currently being renovated 
ready to be in use some time in 2022. 

 
This investment is for the next phase in this programme with another 4 properties 
being sourced to create further additional residential capacity up to a total cost of 
£1.9m with £0.95m of this being provided by a DFE grant and the rest match funded 
by LCC. 

 
Over the next four years a further £5m capital investment has been included subject 
to a review of the business case and individual property and need evaluations. 

 

30



 

 

Capital Funding 
74. The majority of the capital programme is likely to be funded by external grant 

and developer S106 contributions as set out in the table below: 
 

Capital Resources 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 Total 

 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

            

Grants 12,245 1,000 1,000 1,000 15,245 

External Contributions / S106 9,698 2,000 2,000 2,000 15,698 

Earmarked capital receipts  2,685 500 500 500 4,185 

Discretionary Capital Funding  10,301 1,500 1,750 1,750 15,301 

Total Resources  34,929 5,000 5,250 5,250 50,429 

 
Basic Need Grant - is received from the DfE based upon the need to create 
additional school places. Grant of £8.8m for the year 2022/23 has been 
confirmed but estimates   of £1m have been included for the final three years of 
the programme. The grant reflects the overall place need across the County 
and for both maintained schools and academies. The grant meets the 
infrastructure costs of creating new places in primary and secondary schools. 
Eligible revenue costs fall to be met from the local authorities growth fund 
funded from DSG for primary and secondary schools. No funding is received for 
the revenue and capital costs of additional places for SEND. 
 
Strategic Maintenance Grant – is received from the DfE for the maintenance of 
maintained schools only. This grant is based on a formula that considers pupil 
numbers and the overall condition of the school estate. The grant reduces as 
schools convert to academies. Local authority allocations are yet to be 
confirmed. An assumption of £2m per annum has been included in the MTFS.  
 
S106 Contributions – it is estimated that a total of £45m of S106 contributions 
fund the proposed programme, £9.7m in 2022/23. Estimates for the latter two 
years of the MTFS are less certain and are dependent upon the speed of 
housing developments.  It is estimated that the full capital cost of new schools 
required on new housing developments will be fully funded from S106 
contributions. 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A – 2022/23 Leicestershire School Funding Formula 
 
Appendix B – 2022/23 Summary of Commissioned High Needs Places  
 
Appendix C – 2022/23 Children and Family Services Budget 
 
  
Officer to Contact 
Jenny Lawrence, Finance Business Partner – Schools and High Needs 
Email;  jlawrence@leics.gov.uk 
Tel:   0116 3056401   
 
 

31

mailto:jlawrence@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



$k0xquz50.xlsx

Local Authority Funding Reform Proforma

LA Name:

LA Number:

Primary minimum per pupil funding 

level

£4,265

Pupil Led Factors

Reception uplift No
TRUE

Description Sub Total Total 
Proportion of total pre MFG 

funding (%)

Primary (Years R-6) £176,849,750 37.84%

Key Stage 3  (Years 7-9) £107,727,278 23.05%

Key Stage 4 (Years 10-11) £77,597,093 16.60%

Description 
Primary amount 

per pupil 

Secondary amount 

per pupil 

Eligible proportion 

of primary NOR

Eligible proportion of 

secondary NOR
Sub Total Total 

Proportion of total pre MFG 

funding (%)

Primary 

Notional SEN 

(%)

Secondary 

Notional SEN 

(%)
TRUE

FSM £470.00 £470.00 7,361.99 5,403.43 £5,999,751

FSM6 £590.00 £865.00 7,907.67 6,885.30 £10,621,310

IDACI Band  F £220.00 £320.00 4,331.50 3,101.53 £1,945,421 67.00% 67.00%

IDACI Band  E £270.00 £425.00 2,609.35 1,983.12 £1,547,352 67.00% 67.00%

IDACI Band  D £420.00 £595.00 1,070.30 826.05 £941,027 67.00% 67.00%

IDACI Band  C £460.00 £650.00 780.79 636.08 £772,615 67.00% 67.00%

IDACI Band  B £490.00 £700.00 848.12 869.82 £1,024,452 67.00% 67.00%

IDACI Band  A £640.00 £890.00 417.26 655.07 £850,058 67.00% 67.00%

Description 
Primary amount 

per pupil 

Secondary amount 

per pupil 

Eligible proportion 

of primary NOR

Eligible proportion of 

secondary NOR
Sub Total Total 

Proportion of total pre MFG 

funding (%)

Primary 

Notional SEN 

(%)

Secondary 

Notional SEN 

(%)

3) Looked After Children (LAC) LAC March 19 £0 0.00%

EAL 3 Primary £565.00 2,625.88 £1,483,625

EAL 3 Secondary £1,530.00 329.10 £503,528

5) Mobility
Pupils starting school outside of 

normal entry dates
£925.00 £1,330.00 220.31 13.45 £221,670 0.05%

Description Weighting

Amount per pupil 

(primary or 

secondary 

respectively)

Percentage of 

eligible pupils

Eligible proportion of 

primary and 

secondary NOR 

respectively

Sub Total Total 
Proportion of total pre MFG 

funding (%)

Primary 

Notional SEN 

(%)

Secondary 

Notional SEN 

(%)
FALSE

Primary low prior attainment £1,130.00 27.99% 15,389.10 £17,389,687 50.00%

Secondary low prior attainment (year 

7)
64.53% 20.64%

Secondary low prior attainment (year 

8)
64.53% 20.98%

Secondary low prior attainment (year 

9)
64.53% 20.91%

Secondary low prior attainment (year 

10)
63.59% 21.11%

Secondary low prior attainment (year 

11)
58.05% 22.09%

Other Factors
TRUE

Lump Sum per 

Primary School (£)

Lump Sum per 

Secondary School (£)

Lump Sum per 

Middle School (£)

Lump Sum per All-

through School (£)
Total (£)

Proportion of total pre MFG 

funding (%)

£121,300.00 £121,300.00 £32,957,210 7.05%

£55,000.00 £80,000.00 £80,000.00 £80,000.00 £1,471,310 0.31%

Primary distance threshold  (miles) 2.00 21.40 Yes
NFF, tapered or fixed sparsity 

primary lump sum?

Secondary  distance threshold 

(miles) 
3.00 120.00 Yes

NFF, tapered or fixed sparsity 

secondary lump sum?

Middle schools distance threshold 

(miles)
2.00 69.20 Yes

NFF, tapered or fixed sparsity 

middle school lump sum?

All-through  schools distance 

threshold (miles)
2.00 62.50 Yes

NFF, tapered or fixed sparsity 

all-through lump sum?

£0 0.00%
TRUE

£93,164 0.02%

£3,461,749 0.74%

£0 0.00%

Total (£)
Proportion of total pre MFG 

funding (%)

£0 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

£0 0.00%

£82,530 0.02%

£0 0.00%

£0 0.00%

£0 0.00%

£0 0.00%

£457,609,571 97.92%

£9,721,518 2.08%

£467,331,089 100.00%

Capping Factor (%)

Total (£) Proportion of Total funding(%)

£1,058,380 0.22%

1 : 1.27
FALSE

Total Funding For Schools Block Formula (including growth and falling rolls funding) after deduction of 22-23 NFF NNDR allocation £467,330,996

% Distributed through Basic Entitlement 77.50%

% Pupil Led Funding 89.77%

Primary: Secondary Ratio

22-23 NFF NNDR allocation £3,429,457

Falling rolls fund (if applicable) £0.00

Other Adjustment to 21-22 Budget Shares £0

Total Funding For Schools Block Formula (including growth and falling rolls funding) £470,760,453

High Needs threshold (only fill in if, exceptionally, a high needs threshold different from £6,000 has been approved) £0.00

Additional funding from the high needs budget £0.00

Growth fund (if applicable) £2,370,984.16

MFG  Net Total Funding (MFG + deduction from capping and scaling)

Total Funding for Schools Block Formula £468,389,469 £34,960,524

Scaling Factor (%)

Total deduction if capping and scaling factors are applied £0

Notional SEN (%)

15) Minimum Funding Guarantee 2.00% £1,058,380

Where a value less than 0.5% or greater than 2% has been entered please provide the disapplication reference number authorising the value 

Apply capping and scaling factors? (gains may be capped above a specific ceiling and/or scaled) No

Total Funding for Schools Block Formula (excluding minimum per pupil funding level and MFG Funding Total) 

14) Additional funding to meet minimum per pupil funding level

Total Funding for Schools Block Formula (excluding MFG Funding Total) 

Exceptional Circumstance5

Exceptional Circumstance6

Exceptional Circumstance7

Additional sparsity lump sum for small schools

RENT

Exceptional Circumstance4

12) PFI funding

13 ) Exceptional circumstances (can only be used with prior agreement of ESFA)

Circumstance Notional SEN (%)

Additional lump sum for schools amalgamated during FY21-22

9) Fringe Payments

10) Split Sites

11) Rates

Middle school pupil number average 

year group threshold
Apply middle school distance taper NFF

All-through pupil number average year 

group threshold
Apply all-through distance taper NFF

Rows 46 to 49 are populated with the NFF methodology, please leave this as is if you wish to follow the NFF. As per the Operational Guidance, the distance thresholds can be increased or the year group size thresholds decreased and the distance threshold taper is optional. An 

alternative method of allocation to the NFF’s average year group size taper can be chosen: the continuous taper (Tapered) or fixed sum (Fixed). Examples of each are provided in the Operational Guidance.

Primary pupil number average year 

group threshold
Apply primary distance taper NFF

Secondary pupil number average year 

group threshold
Apply secondary distance taper NFF

50.00%

Factor Notional SEN (%)

7) Lump Sum

8) Sparsity factor

6) Low prior attainment £31,458,680 6.73%
£1,710.00 8,227.48 £14,068,993

2) Deprivation £23,701,985 5.07%

£0.00 505.69

£2,208,823
4) English as an Additional 

Language (EAL)
0.43%

1) Basic Entitlement

Age Weighted Pupil Unit (AWPU)

Pupil Units 0.00

Amount per pupil Pupil Units Notional SEN (%)

£3,217.00 54,973.50

£362,174,121

4.00%

£4,536.00 23,749.40 4.00%

£5,112.00 15,179.40 4.00%

Leicestershire

855

Secondary (KS3 only) minimum per 

pupil funding level

Secondary (KS4 only) minimum per pupil 

funding level
Secondary minimum per pupil funding level

Disapplication number where 

alternative MPPF values are 

used

£5,321.00 £5,831.00 £5,525.00

33



This page is intentionally left blank



$afht03hb.xlsx

Special School Category
Total High Needs 

Places 22/23

Average top up 

per place

Forest Way Academy 243 6,221

Dorothy Goodman Academy 320 7,350

Ashmount Maintained School 182 8,189

Birch Wood Maintained School 172 8,995

Maplewell Hall Maintained School 231 4,006

Birkett House Academy 247 8,518

Foxfields Academy 60 17,877

Fusion Academy 60 17,877

Forest Way (C&I Unit) Academy 12 16,800

Dorothy Goodman (C&I Unit) Academy 25 21,580

Birch Wood (C&I Unit) Maintained School 42 21,580

Maplewell Hall (C&I Unit) Maintained School 60 21,580

Special Unit Category
Total High Needs 

Places 22/23

Average top up 

per place

Hugglescote Community Primary 

School 
Maintained School 11 1,994

Newbold Verdon Primary School Maintained School 24
7,671

Iveshead Maintained School 16 19,983

Iveshead (SEMH Unit) Maintained School 6 16,800

St Denys Church Of England Infant 

School 
Maintained School 15 4,066

Westfield Infant School Maintained School 24 3,622

Westfield Junior School Maintained School 25 2,809

Thorpe Acre Junior School (C&I Unit) Maintained School 10 16,800

Brookside Primary School Academy 20 4,817

Sherard Primary School And 

Community Centre 
Academy 33

4,751

Asfordby Captains Close Primary 

School
Academy 10

16,800

Winstanley SHINE Secondary Academy 15
16,800

Kingsway Primary Academy 6
16,800

Woodcote Primary School Academy 10
16,800

Christ Church & St Peters Primary 

School
Academy 10

16,800

Wigston Academy Trust Academy 10 19,983

Glenfield Primary School Academy 19 3,591

Beacon Academy Academy 33 4,594

Rawlins Academy (MLD) Academy 70 3,734

The Beauchamp College Academy 6

5,090 plus HI 

teachers supplied 

by STS

The Cedars Academy Academy 15 2,815

Wreake Valley (C&I Unit) Academy 10 16,800

Thomas Estley (C&I Unit) Academy 6 16,800

Hinckley Parks Primary (SEMH Unit) Academy 10
16,800

Rawlins Academy (C&I Unit) Academy 10 21,580

Wigston All Saints (C&I Unit) Academy 12 17,563

Oasis The Retreat Specialist Pre-

School
Pre-School 7

5,714

Wigston Menphys Early Years Pre-School 32
8,547

Sketchley Menphys Early Years Pre-School 24
7,276

Beacon Early Years Pre-School 5
9,286

Further Education Provider / 

Alternative Provision
Category

Total High Needs 

Places 22/23

Average top up 

per place

SMB Group College Further Education 67 3,433

Leicestershire County Further Education 7 16,585

Loughborough College Further Education 86 2,221

Oakfield School 
Maintained Alternative 

Provision - Pru
30 10,023

35



$afht03hb.xlsx

Post 16 in mainstream Category
Total High Needs 

Places 22/23

Average top up 

per place

Ashby School Academy 1 7,414

The Beauchamp College Academy 2 5,796

The Castle Rock School Academy 1 4,960

De Lisle College Academy 4 4,469

Brookvale Groby Learning Campus Academy 3
5,512

Hinckley Academy and John 

Cleveland Sixth Form Centre
Academy 2

4,602

Wigston College Academy 1 1,180

Wreake Valley Academy Academy 1 5,170

36



$afht03hb.xlsx

Special Independent Schools - 

Primary Need
Category

Number budgeted 

22/23

Average cost of 

day placement

C&I Independent 203 £62,093

SEMH Independent 200 £56,029

Dyslexia Independent 9 £19,629

VI Independent 3 £73,387

HI Independent 3 £35,785

Total / Average 418 £58,170

Independent Specialist Provision 

(16+)
151 £25,175

Forest Way £2,984 £4,812 £6,639 £8,466 £12,123 £15,778 £19,434

Dorothy Goodman £3,084 £4,912 £6,739 £8,566 £12,223 £15,878 £19,534

Ashmount £3,123 £4,951 £6,778 £8,605 £12,262 £15,917 £19,573

Birch Wood £3,584 £5,412 £7,239 £9,066 £12,723 £16,378 £20,034

Maplewell £2,925 £4,753 £6,580 £8,407 £12,064 £15,719 £19,375

Birkett House £3,349 £5,177 £7,004 £8,831 £12,488 £16,143 £19,799

Special Unit Category

Total High

New Provisions Under Development

Provision Type
Total High Needs Places 

Created

Estimated Opening 

Date

Average top up 

per place

Cedars SEMH Unit 15 Sep-22 16,800

Robert Smyth C&I Unit 15 Sep-22 16,800

Wigston All Saints C&I Unit - 

Expansion
10 Sep-22

17,563

Band 9 Band 10

Special School top up rates 

incorporating outreach, fixed 

allowances, split site and satellites

Band 5 Band 6 Band 7 Band 7A Band 8 

37



This page is intentionally left blank



CHILDREN & FAMILY SERVICES DEPARTMENT

PROPOSED REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23

Budget 21/22 Employees
Running 

Expenses

Internal 

Income
Gross Budget

External 

Income

Net Total 

22/23
Schools Early Years High Needs

Dedicated 

Schools Grant
LA Block

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

1,332,067 C&FS Directorate 1,290,861 80,547 0 1,371,408 -39,341 1,332,067 18,121 43,327 150,803 212,252 1,119,815
1,332,067 C&FS Directorate 1,290,861 80,547 0 1,371,408 -39,341 1,332,067 18,121 43,327 150,803 212,252 1,119,815

2,143,712 C&FS Safeguarding 2,177,680 182,115 0 2,359,795 0 2,359,795 0 0 0 0 2,359,795
112,611 LSCB 301,710 141,804 -69,364 374,150 -261,517 112,633 0 0 0 0 112,633

2,256,323 Safeguarding, Improvement & QA 2,479,391 323,919 -69,364 2,733,946 -261,517 2,472,429 0 0 0 0 2,472,429

1,493,764 Asylum Seekers 468,708 2,129,961 0 2,598,669 -1,000,000 1,598,669 0 0 0 0 1,598,669
4,252,472 C&FS Fostering & Adoption 4,714,525 601,016 -500 5,315,041 -254,290 5,060,751 0 0 0 0 5,060,751

38,345,488 C&FS Operational Placements 0 37,906,703 0 37,906,703 -314,000 37,592,703 0 0 0 0 37,592,703
3,212,530 Children in Care Service 3,071,297 670,164 0 3,741,461 -129,000 3,612,461 0 0 0 0 3,612,461

526,873 Education of Children in Care 817,811 1,638,359 -407,617 2,048,553 -1,521,680 526,873 0 0 0 0 526,873
47,831,127 Children in Care 9,072,341 42,946,203 -408,117 51,610,427 -3,218,970 48,391,457 0 0 0 0 48,391,457

4,355,374 CPS North 4,271,914 322,460 0 4,594,374 0 4,594,374 0 0 0 0 4,594,374
4,103,445 CPS South 3,874,063 323,382 0 4,197,445 0 4,197,445 0 0 0 0 4,197,445
1,393,972 Childrens Management 1,114,729 730 -36,487 1,078,972 0 1,078,972 0 0 0 0 1,078,972
2,861,550 C&FS First Response 3,033,793 28,720 -500 3,062,013 -29,000 3,033,013 0 0 0 0 3,033,013

903,694 Child Sexual Exploitation Team 899,803 22,891 0 922,694 0 922,694 0 0 0 0 922,694
1,532,916 Social Care Legal Costs 44,000 1,532,916 0 1,576,916 0 1,576,916 0 0 0 0 1,576,916

15,150,952 Field Social Work 13,238,303 2,231,099 -36,987 15,432,415 -29,000 15,403,415 0 0 0 0 15,403,415

509,998 Practice Excellence 576,505 37,077 -67,584 545,998 -36,000 509,998 0 0 0 0 509,998
509,998 Practice Excellence 576,505 37,077 -67,584 545,998 -36,000 509,998 0 0 0 0 509,998

3,367,475 C&FS CFWS East 3,290,525 377,941 -90,413 3,578,053 0 3,578,053 0 0 0 0 3,578,053
4,252,715 C&FS CFWS West 3,786,274 447,121 -122,463 4,110,932 -275 4,110,657 0 0 0 0 4,110,657
3,375,396 C&FS CFWS Youth 3,595,733 859,842 -604,008 3,851,567 -775,254 3,076,313 0 0 0 0 3,076,313

493,950 C&FS CFWS Central 75,000 354,804 0 429,804 0 429,804 0 0 0 0 429,804

263,102 C&FS Community Safety 296,108 1,156,116 0 1,452,224 -1,188,169 264,055 0 0 0 0 264,055

-3,504,233 C&FS Troubled Families Pooled Budget 0 -872,500 -1,468,575 -2,341,075 -1,165,450 -3,506,525 0 0 0 0 -3,506,525

8,248,405 C&FS Children & Families Wellbeing 11,043,640 2,323,324 -2,285,459 11,081,505 -3,129,148 7,952,357 0 0 0 0 7,952,357

831,298 C&FS Education Suffciency 1,174,484 116,943 -48,851 1,242,576 -365,200 877,376 384,221 0 0 384,221 493,155

831,298 Education Suffciency 1,174,484 116,943 -48,851 1,242,576 -365,200 877,376 384,221 0 0 384,221 493,155

37,475,376 C&FS 0-5 Learning 2,425,517 35,014,010 0 37,439,527 -60,000 37,379,527 0 35,616,331 1,432,012 37,048,343 331,184

415,919 C&FS 5-19 Learning 873,145 263,753 -191,799 945,099 -481,165 463,934 300,790 0 0 300,790 163,144

3,588,974 Inclusion 1,051,402 2,739,715 -27,143 3,763,974 -150,000 3,613,974 0 0 2,645,158 2,645,158 968,816

1,325,047 Oakfield 259,170 1,325,047 0 1,584,217 0 1,584,217 0 0 1,350,817 1,350,817 233,400

42,805,316 Education Quality & inclusion 4,609,234 39,342,525 -218,942 43,732,817 -691,165 43,041,652 300,790 35,616,331 5,427,987 41,345,108 1,696,544

79,482,066 C&FS SEN 1,649,880 93,044,376 -313,033 94,381,223 -252,849 94,128,374 0 0 93,031,457 93,031,457 1,096,917

2,423,669 C&FS Specialist Services to Vulnerable Groups 2,472,205 115,664 0 2,587,869 -164,201 2,423,668 0 0 2,423,668 2,423,668 0

1,095,761 C&FS Psychology Service 1,540,503 55,450 -202,302 1,393,651 -260,500 1,133,151 0 0 0 0 1,133,151

4,118,969 C&FS Disabled Children 910,932 3,111,627 0 4,022,559 0 4,022,559 0 0 0 0 4,022,559

1,059,491 HNB Development Programme 41,660 738,748 0 780,408 0 780,408 0 0 780,408 780,408 0

-5,650,000 DSG Reserve income 0 0 -8,934,172 -8,934,172 0 -8,934,172 0 0 -8,934,172 -8,934,172 0

82,529,955 SEND & Children with Disabilities 6,615,180 97,065,865 -9,449,507 94,231,538 -677,550 93,553,988 0 0 87,301,361 87,301,361 6,252,627

4,980,116 C&FS Business Support 6,336,194 866,612 -1,408,917 5,793,889 0 5,793,889 8,570 272,403 142,113 423,086 5,370,803

2,285,220 Central Charges 0 2,285,220 0 2,285,220 0 2,285,220 1,434,683 210,848 639,689 2,285,220 0

-129 C&FS Finance 0 538,140 -763,000 -224,860 0 -224,860 538,140 0 0 538,140 -763,000

1,489,900 C&FS Human Resources 1,539,900 0 0 1,539,900 -50,000 1,489,900 674,900 0 0 674,900 815,000

821,259 C&FS Commissioning & Planning 799,901 8,250 -44,117 764,034 0 764,034 0 0 0 0 764,034

312,782 C&FS Sub Transformation 55,718 42,122 0 97,840 0 97,840 0 0 0 0 97,840

9,889,148 Business Support & Commissioning 8,731,713 3,740,344 -2,216,034 10,256,023 -50,000 10,206,023 2,656,293 483,251 781,802 3,921,346 6,284,677

-645,000 C&FS Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-123,280,931 C&FS Dedicated Schools Grant 0 -11,310,190 -400,555 -11,710,745 -122,991,512 -134,702,257 -3,663,195 -36,142,909 -94,896,153 -134,702,257 0

456,632,407 Delegated School Budgets 0 482,621,573 0 482,621,573 -10,340,669 472,280,904 471,046,704 0 1,234,200 472,280,904 0

-455,179,591 Delegated Dedicated Schools Grant 0 0 0 0 -470,742,935 -470,742,935 -470,742,935 0 0 -470,742,935 0

0 Dedicated Schools Grant Recoupment 0 -387,101,015 0 -387,101,015 387,101,015 0 0 0 0 0 0

-122,473,115 C&FS Other 0 84,210,368 -400,555 83,809,813 -216,974,101 -133,164,288 -3,359,426 -36,142,909 -93,661,953 -133,164,288 0

88,911,473 Total 58,831,651 272,418,213 -15,201,400 316,048,464 -225,471,992 90,576,473 0 0 0 0 90,576,473

88,911,473 Check 90,576,473

Appendix C

39



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Meeting held on 15 November 2021 (previously circulated) and matters arising.
	3 2022/23 Schools Budget
	Appendix A - 2022-23 School Funding Formula
	Appendix B - 2022-23 Commissioned SEN Places
	Appendix C - 2022-23 Children and Family Services Proposed Budget


